RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U74140D1.2015PTC286390
Regt. Address- Plot No. 30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015
Mail ID- ranveerkhyalivafemail.com

NOTICE OF AGM

SHORTER NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of
RNFI Services Private Limited will be held on Monday, 31st day of December, 2020 at
11.30 A.M. at, Plot No. 30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015 to transact the
following business:

I. ORDINARY BUSINESS

ITEM-1- Adoption of Financial Statement

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on 315t March 2020 and the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2020 together with the Reports
of the Board of directors and Auditor thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors

For RNFI Sgrvices Private Limited
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NITESH #6MAR SHARMA RANVEER KHYALIYA
Director M ipp Director
DIN: 7290315 DIN: 07290203

Registered office: Plot No. 30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015

Dated-28/12/2020
Place: Delhi

Note:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE MEETING INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF / HERSELF, AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of not exceeding 50 members
and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company.

2. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the meeting (on or before 31st December, 2020, 11:30 A.M. IST). A proxy form
for the AGM is enclosed.



3. Members / proxies / authorized representatives should bring the duly filled
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the meeting.

4. Members desiring any information/clarification on the annual accounts are
requested to write to the company at its registered office at least 7 days before
the date of annual general meeting so that the same may be complied well in
advance,

5. The shareholder needs to furnish the printed Attendance slip along with a valid
identity proof such as the PAN card, passport, AADHAR card or driving license to
enter the AGM hall.

By order of the Board of Directors

For RNFI Services Private Limited

R g e e For RN e T R
Fer RNRJ SERVICES P 17D VICES PVT LD

NITESH MAR SHARMA RANVEER KHYALIYA
Director Director
DIN: 07290315 DIN: 07290203

Registered office: Plot No. 30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015
Dated- 28/12/2020
Place: Delhi



RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U74140DL2015PTC286390
Regt. Address- Plot No. 30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area. Delhi 110015

Mail ID- ranveerkhyaliya@gmail.com

MAP FOR AGM ON DATED 31.12.2020 AT REGISTERED OFFICE
OF THE COMPANY
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RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN- U74140DL2015PTC286390
Regt. Address- Plot No. 30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015
New Delhi West Delhi DL 110015 IN
Mail ID- ranveerkhyaliya@gmail.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Regd. Folio No./DP ID - Client ID

Name & Address of First/Sole Member

No. of Shares held

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 5th Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company scheduled to be held on Monday, December 31,
2020 at 11:30 a.m. at its Registered office at J-152, First Floor, Rajouri
Garden, New Delhi-110027.




RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U74140DL.2015PTC286390
Regt. Address- Plot No. 30, Nazalgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015
New Delhi West Delhi DL 110015 IN

Mail ID- ranveerkhyaliya@gmail.com

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s)/

Representative: e B i -
Registered Address: I )
E-mail ID: - -
Folio No./Client ID: | DPID: B

I/ We, being the member (s) of......oovveveeeennnen. equity shares of the

above-named Company, hereby appoint:

1.Name 1.Name 1. Name

Address: Address: Address:

Email Id: Email Id: Email Id:

Signature:...,, or failing Signature:....,, or failing Signature:. .,, or failing

him/her him/her him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a ballot/poll) for me/us and on
my/our behalf at the 5th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be
held on Thursday, December 30, 2020 at 11:30 A.M. at Plot No. 30,
Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi 110015 and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resbml'ﬁj Resolution

and Auditors Report thereon and Board
Report for the financial period
ended on March 31, 2020

Signed TthIS ..o Day 0f2020

Signature of 1** proxy Holders(s)

on

Numbe - -

Ordinary Business

Ik Adoption and Approval of Balance | For Agains Abstain
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss t

AT

¢
tamp ol

01
han

leny

Ks
i

Signature of 2™ proxy Holders(s) Signature of 3™




proxy Holders(s)

Notes:

1.

It is optional to indicate your reference, if you leave the for, against
column or abstain column blank against or abstain column blank
against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled in the manner
as he/she may deem appropriate.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped,
completed, signed, and deposited at the registered office of the
company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting.

The proxy form should be signed as per specimen signature registered
with the share transfer Agents or Depository Participant, as the case
may be.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Tao,

o
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The Members,

The Board of Directors of your Company have the pleasure in presenting their 5% Annual

Report together with the aodited financial statements for the pericd beginning from April 1,
2019 and ending on March 31, 2020,

A\

I. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS:

Tﬂﬂ_’:ﬁmlﬂﬂ“}”ﬁ financial summary for the year under review along with previous year's figures
is given hereunder:

MMMIMDBIB_1 {I]Y)
7

forming part of the extract of the annual return in the prescribed form MG

as Annexure- “A",

4. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

T-9 15 onnexed herein

{x) [Juri_ng the financial vear under review, the Board of Directors have met
times on the following dates:

17 (Seventeen)

. A

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 a&

(Amountin | (Amountin N

/ Rs.) Rs.) %ﬁ

/ Total Revenue - 04,00,62.846 | 37,57,10,349 ——

/ Total Expenditure 03,57.80,146 | 137.47.37.595 w

/ | Profit/{Loss) before Tax — 42,82.700 9.72.754 “\

/// Current Tax §.59.640 332172 R

/ Deferred Tax 2,262 | 425811 \

// Net Profit/Loss 34.20,789 5.97.771 \§

% 2. THESTATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS: %

% During the year, the profit of the company was Rs, 34,20,789 as compared 16 of Rs, 5.07.77) %&

% for the previous year. \\%\

% 3. ANEXTRACTOF THE ANNUAL RETURN: \R\\\\\:H_

S

% As mandated under sub section (3) of section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, the details % Q"‘b:'-.
?;
7
Z

8. No. | Date of meeting Number of directors | % of attendance
Allended :|
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L [03dune 2009 |3 i — S
(23 July 2019 o - T
_ [29%mly2010 3 o
4, | 26" Augus 2019 1 ()1} =
— 5, | 153" Dctoler 2019 1 = e e |
_h,_-Th-l.‘«ui:'i\-'mIHll:r-."llf'_r 3 | 3}
T3 [ 16™ November 2019 [ 3 | |t}
—5 T 10 Novomber 201013 | 180
0| 02" December 2019 44 i |
10, | 20% December 20191 3 ' £ -
11, | 21 Jammry 2020 3 ! 1y
e January 2020 3 10
13. | 07" February 2020 3 10
14, | 12" Febwuiry 2020 ) [ 10 |
15, | 25" February 2020 i () =
16, | 26" February 2020 3 [ {H)
17. | 27" February 2020 3 i 10

The Board meetings were convened and held in terms of the reguirements of the scetion 173 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with 55-1 e, Secrptarial Standards on meetings of the Board of
Direciors and the maximum interval between two Board meetings was not maore than 120 days,

() Atendance of the Directors:

5. No. | Name of the Director Number of mecting | No. of !"-Inetiuﬂs_i
which director | atiended
cotitled to attend L S 4]
1. Mr. Ranveer Khyaliva | 17 17 .
2. Mr.  Nitesh  Kumar | 17 17 ’
Sharma i
3. Mr. Kapil Chawla 17 |7

5. SHARE CATI’ L:
During the financial year under review there was no change in the issued, subscribed and paid

up capital of the Company.

6. DIRECTORS' RESIMONSI BILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuanl 1o the reguirements of Section 134(5) of the Companics Act, 20013, with respect w
Direcior’'s Responsibility Stalement, it i hereby confirmed:

a} That in the preparation of the annual accoums, the applicable accounting standards had
heen followed nlone with proper explanation relating o material departures;

b) That the directors had selected such accounting policies and applicd them consistently
and made judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent so as to give a fruse
and fair view of the state of affairs ol the company at the end of the linancial vear and ol

Far RNEI sp(he phaliruid.loss of the company for that period:

Direcior
Director
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¢) That t['lﬂl' directors |"I?f| taken proper and sufficient care for the mainienance of adequae
accounting records in accordanee with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assels of the company and for preventing and detecting lraud and other imegularities:

d) That the directors had prepared the annunl secounts on o going concemn basis, and

g) That the directors had devised preper systems to cnsure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such sysiems were adequate and operating effectively,

7. REPFORTING OF FRALID:

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reponted commission of any fravd
by the Company and its officers or employee to the audit committee of the Board or 1o the

Board of Directors or (o the Central Government.

8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company being a Private Limited Company was not required to appoint independent
directors on its Board as required and mandated under the provisicas of section 149(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointiment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014.

9. CONSTITUTION Of NOMINATION AN
DIRECTORS:

The Company, heing a Private Limited Company was not required (o constitute a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Directors in terms of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act,

2013 and Rule 6 of the Companiss (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

10. EXP TIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OXN
EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR

DISCLAITMER MADE:

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and
report 2re self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

11. LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

During the year under review, the Company has entered into any transaction conceming giving
leans, guerantees or providing security or acquisitions as prescribed under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and proper discloser has been made in the financial statement in this

regard.

12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188;

The Company has entered into related party transactions during the year, The particulars of the
contract or arrangements referred 1o in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companics Act,
2013 including transactions undertaken in the ordinary course of  business and on an am's
length basis thereto entered into by the Company with related pantics as defined under section
2(76) is annexed hereto in Form No. ADC=-2, a5 Annexure-1,

. RESERVES: i
.::FLHWE'SE R For RNFI SERVICES PVT L1,
Flalt a i b
CQ“E:@LIUT Director



The Board of director has not proposed any transler io General Reserves,

14. DIVIDENDS:

vours directors have expressed their inahility to recommend any final dividend for the finarcial
year ended March 31, 2020,

MATERIA COMMITMENTS, IF _ANY, AFFE .
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE _COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
“TWEEN_THE E THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO

15

WHICH THE FI AL STATEMENTS REL AND THE DATE OF THE
REFORT:

During the vear under review, there have been no material changes and commitments, if any,
affecting the financial position of the Company which have occured between the end of the
financial vear of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the daie of the repor.

16. THE_CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. Conservation of Energy:

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Nil
iii. the steps taken by the company for wiilizing alternate sources of energy: Nil
iii.the capital investment on energy conservation squipments; Nil

B. Technology Absorption:

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption - Nil

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development
ar import substitution « Nil

jii.in case of imported technolagy (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the finanzial year) - Nil

iv.the expenditure incurred on Research and Development - Nil

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: Nil

17. RIBK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has not framed any Risk Management Folicy, however, the company has adopted
a mechanism to identify, assess, and monitor various risks to the key objectives of the
Company.

18. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIRBILITY {CSR):

During the year under review, the Company docs not fall under the purview of the criteria
prescribed under the provisions of Section 133 of the Act for constitution of a Corporate Social

Responsibility Commitiee and therefore, was not required to form Corporate Social
Responzibility Committee.

19. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, [F ANY:
For RS Scriviano e, wik Far RNFI SERVICES PVT. LD
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There has been no change in the nature ol business of the Company during the period under
review,

20, THE DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MAN
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE

sERIAL PERSONNEL

During the vear under review, there was po change in the constlution of the Board ol Direciars

11. NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME Ol CEASED TO BE

ITS SUBSTDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE C( IMPANIES DURING

THE YEAR:

5. | Name of the Companics ' CIN Subsidiary/ Juini |

M. Venfure! Associale

L. | RNFI FINTECH PRIVATE | UsTI000L2019PTCISIHED Subsidiary
LIMITED _

2. RNFI MONEY PRIVATE U&7 00D M9 PTCISI628 Subsidiary
LIMITED

3. FIKGPAY PRIVATE a0 D L0 PTCIAIZAN Joint Venture
LIMITED :

4. RNFI CMS  SERVICES | UT4799DL201SPTCI0ST Subsidiary
FRIVATE LIMITED

22. DEPOSITS:

ny deposits falling under Chapter V of

The Company has neither accepted nor rencwed 4
paid deposils as on March 31, 2020,

Companies Act, 2013, There were no unclaimed or un

23. DETAILS O IGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSKED B
REGULATCY OR COURTS OR_TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE G

CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS TN FUTURE:

During the year under review, no such arders were passed by the regulators or courts or
iribunals impacting the going concern status and company”’s operations.

24. DETAILS _IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company maintains appropriale systems of internal financial contral with reference to the
statcments, including monitoring procedures, 1o ensure that all assets are safepuarded

HE

financial
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.

25. VIGIL MECHANISM:

This Section is not applicable to Company for the year under review,

16. INTERNAL AUDITORS:

The Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statement and

these are working effectively.

27. ISSUE__OF EMPLOVEE STOCK _ OPTIONS/EQUITY SHARES  WITH

DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS/SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

For RNFISERVICES FVT. LU For RNFI SERVICES PVT. LTD,

P
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During the year under review, the company did not issue equily shoares with dilferential
rights/sweat equity shares or shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme.

28. DETAILS _OF SEXUAL _HARASSMENT POLICY DEVELOPED AND
IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY:

Purcuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women a1 Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 read with Rules there wnder, the Company has
not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review.

1%, 5T RY AU S:

M/S AGRAWAL CHETAN & CO., Chartered Accountant Firm (firm registration
D32300N) were appointed as the Statutary Auditors of the Company at s Annual Gener
Mecting of the Company held on December 31%, 2020 for a term 0 5 conseCulive yedis it

Company.
30, COST RECORD:

The provision of Cost audit as per seclion 143 doesn’t applicable on the Company'.

31. EMPLOYEES:

During the financial vear under review, Mo employee of the Company was in receipt of
remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under the Section 197 of the Com panies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(2) of the Companics (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014,

32, ACKNOWLEDCEMENTS:

Y our Dircctors place on record their appreciation for the overwhelming co-operation, assistance
and support extended by the atlomeys, Governmental authorities, Banks, Auditors and other
consultants of the Company. Your Directors express their appreciation for the dedication and
sincere services rendered by the associates and employees of the Company.

By the orders of {lic Board o
For RIVF i‘q{?‘ﬂ“ﬁiﬁ @Eliﬂﬂcrzs PRIVATE BIMITED SAVICES PV LTD.

(:—Qﬁrfﬂlﬂf Diractor

Ranveer Khyaliyn Nitesh Kumar Sharmi

Director Director

DIN: 07290203 DIN: 07290315 |
Address: Ward No.=37, Address: J-154, 1st Floor, |
Jaipur Road, Rajouri Garden,

Swami Ke Dhani, Delhi-110027

Sikar, Rajasthan-332001

Date; 28.12.2020
Place: Delhi




Annexure-1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
a5 on the financial year ended on 3 1% March, 2020

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN U74140DL2015PTCI86390

ii) Registration Date 13/10/2013
iii) Wame of the Company RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED |

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by sharcs /
Indian Mon-Government Company

3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Road,
Industrial Area, Delhi-110015

vit Whether listed company (Y/N) 1M
vii) Mame, Address and Contact details of Registrar and | N.A.
Transfer Agent, if any

v} Address of the Registered office and contact details

1L PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total tumaover af the company shall be

stated: -
3], No. | Mame and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total tumover

SErVICES Product! service of the company
I Other business activities n.e.c. 749949 104

B

[IL PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any holding, or associate company.

Applicable
Section

[_E. Name & Address of the CIN
No. | Company

RNF1 MONEY PRIVATE UG7I00DLI019PTCIS 1628 2(87)
LIMITED

Add.: 3rd Floor, Plot No.-30,
Mazafgarh Road, Industrial

Area, Dolhi-110015
3. | RNFI FINTECH PRIVATE UaTI00DLINNIPTCIS 469 1]

LIMITED — -

For RNFI EERVICES PYIL LD

alldaiae For RNFI SER

_”I/L/-r’"" VICES PVT LT
- ﬂ.




Add,:

Ard Floor, Plot No.-M,

Aorea,

MNazafparh Roac, Industrial

Delhi-110015

3| RNFI

Area,

PMRIVATE LIMITED
A
Nn:':nfgn il Boad, Indosidal

CMS SERVICES
Arcd Floor, Plot Moe-2M),

Dethi-110015

U eDLIRrTC 08 | 100 2 (47)

— | _il.}

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as pereentage of Total Equity)

i} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Mo, of Shares lbeld an the Nk of Shiares held ot the end of the T
Sharcholders beginning of the year year Chang
C
durin
¢ the
i year
Demat | Physic | Totl | %ol | Demat | Physical | Total | % of
ol | Total l Total
Slures Shares

A Promoicers

(1) Indian

a) Individueal
HUF

NIL | 100000 | 100000

1

100.00 [ NIL | 100000 | 100000 | 10000 | NIL

b} Central
Giovi

¢) State Govt

d) Boedies
Corp.

) Banks / Fl

) Any Other

HIL

Sub-total (A)
(1}:-

NIL | 100000 | 100000

100,00 | NIL | 100000 | 100000 | 100.00 | NIL

(2) Forcign

a) NRIs-

_ Individuals
b) Other-
Individuals

¢} Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

| ¢) Any Other

HIL

Sub-total {A)

NIL

{2):-

Total
sharcholding
of Mromoter

(A)=

NIL | 100000 | 100000

10000 | NIL | 100000 | 100000 | 100.00 | NIL

e Lirector

For RNF1 SERVICES PVT. LD
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AN +HAND)

|

It. Public
Sharcholding

1. Institufions

ah Mutual
Funds

by Banks / F1

¢} Central
Covi

d) State Govt
¢} Venture
Capital Fund
£ Insurance
Companics

o) Flls
h) Foreign
Venture

Capital Funds
i} Others
(specify)

MIL

Sub-iotal
(Bi{l):-

NIL

2, Non-
Institutions

a) Body
Corporate

i) Indiamn

i) Overseas

MIL

b} Individuals

i} Individual
sharcholders
holding
nominal share
capital
uptoRs. 1 Iakh

i1} Individual
sharcholders
holding
nominal share
capital in

excess of Rs |

lakh

S OthersNon | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL [ NiL [ NIL [ NIL [NL [ NIL
[Promoter

Shareholding)

Sub-total NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL [ NIL
(B)2):-

alPablic | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL | NIL

thblding ES FVI LD = el
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(IEy={Lh) 0+ l ____ ]__ "1" H ]"" 'T___
() A -
C. Shares held
by Custodian NIL.
for GRS &
ADRs
G Tetal NI | AR | RAMTEHIG 1 NIL (LRLLIEHIA LLENEE L] MIL
(A+B+C)
vV, INDERTEDNLESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued bul not due for payment:
- Secured Loans Unsecurcd Depo Tuotal |
excluding deposits | Loans =s5ils Indebiedness
Indebiedness at the beginning of the |
financial year
i} Principal Amount 10:4,52.989.90 e 104,83 089,094 |
i) Interest due but nod paid i s ,_!
aid Interest acerued but not dus TE amem | il I
Total (i+ii+iii) e - po
Change in Indebtedness during the
Nnoneial vear
Addition in Principal Amount 01.63,42,153.55 | 94,00.00000 | NIL 52,57.42,153.55
Addition in interest due but not paid 307.212.00 | 1.26,341.00 4,43,553.00

Reduction in Principal Amount

(01.20,50,554.31)

(94,00,000.00)

(02,14,50,554.31)

Feduction in Interest due bat not
paid

(2,55.175.00)

(1,26,341.00)

(3,81,516.00)

Net Change : 43,53.636.24 — 43,53.636.24
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial vear
i} Principal Amount 148 36,626,590 e 1.48.36.626.90 |
i) Interest due but not paid b e ]
i) Interest accrued but not due e | mee S
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,48 36,626,920 | —— 1.48.36,626.90 |
VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration 10 Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
5L | Particulars of Name of MName of WTDs Total
no. | Remuneration MLV Amount (In
Manager Rs.)
Mer, Mr. Kapil | Mr. Nitesh
Ranwveer Chawla Kumiar
Khyaliva Sharma

1. | Gross salary

{a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) of 12.00,000 | 12,00,000 | 1200000 316,00.000

the Income-tax Act, 1961

b} Value of perquisites w's :

(b Value of perquisite Nl Nil i i !l

Far RNFISERVICES FVT. DL
c E T
sl FantHFI.,E‘.’I PV LTO.
i e e
= = - = = = _—-_.._”' '-i":' e

T
I:-l. Lol

___.-.—n-rrim-ﬁﬁ T‘lrr{.r L|.I -L.Il]ﬁrlﬁ‘ 1.k




r—

02,
0.
i,

1702} Income-tax Act, 1961, |

p.}i‘ml'l:.|l:|!|c-1mr~ml||:.. NI bl il il il

wneler section | T3 Income- 4

[JERY Acl, I'?I_'.:ll_ - e 2o e e . - 1 o
e Nl M| Nl N
?i;n;{!_ffct.lﬂur__ = X MNil Nil Nl Nil
_l;"-n:-ﬁim fesion | _ —_— e

- s % of profit Mil il il Nil

_..1|;I|m, J:-H:lh oy —f—r P

0 Iu.m pleise speeily Nil Nil | Ml o |
[Total (A) 12.00.000 | 12.00,000 | 12,00,000 | 36,00,000
T 1-1-IL|:. s por the Act i i |

i, Remuneration to other directors

Total

51

PFarticulars of Remuneration

Name of Directiors
Amount |
: |

Ak

Independent Directors

Fee for n:h:mim;r Frovard { comemitice ml;.l.lHIEf-

Comimission e

Oithers, please specily

Toral (1)

[ 5% )
H

Other Non-Executive Dircctors

Fee for aending hoard / commitiee i r:cimg _

Commission

Others. please specily

Todal (2]

Toal (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerinl Remuneration

NIL

. Remunerlion

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

to Key Managerial Personnel otfier than MDVManager/WTL:

Toial

sl

Particulirs of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

._N“'

CED | Company Secretary | CFO

Gross safary

I7(1) of the Income-1ax Act, 1961

(u]- Salary ns per prov isions contained i section

th) Value of perquisites w's 17(2) Inconme-tax
| 961

; Act,

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
Income Tax Act, 1961

17(3)

Stock Option

Hlf\r

| Sweat Equity

e ]

Commission
- o5 % of profi
- others, specify

Oithers, please specily

- | Total

For RNFI SERVICES BT LD,
N

™% Directar




VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Briefl Details of Penalty | Authority | Appeal made
' | Companics Description | /Punishment! |RD Lif any fgiﬂ;
| Act Compounding fees | /NCLT/ | Details)
imposed COURT] |

“A. COMPANY

Penalty
i Punizhment NIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty
‘ Punisliment ML

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

. Penalty .
Punishment NIL
Compounding

| By Order of the Board
For RFgr"RNFISERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

} 6}@#"‘

jrectar

| - Ranveer Khyaliva Nitesh prrd&rharma
Dircctor 3 Director

I DIN: 07290205 DIN: 07290313
R/o: Ward No.-37, Jaipur Road,  RJo: J-134, 1st Floor,

‘ Swami Kelhani, Sikar, Rajouri Garden, Delhi-1 10027

Rajasthan-332001

‘- Date: 28.12.2020
‘ Place: Delhi
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RNFI SERVICES PVT. LTD.

FORM ADC-1

\

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Rl

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section [3) of Section 129 read w

ith rule 5 of the Companies

A\

[ joint ventures

TR
SN

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of

subsidiaries [ associate companies |

Part "A": Subsidiaries

1

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs, }

5l | Particulars Details
No.
1 | Name of subsidiary RMFIMoney | RNFIFintech | RNFI CMS
| Private Limited | Private Services
| | Lirnited Private Limited
2 | Reporting period for the subsidiary 20" June 2015 | 17" June 2019 | O1stApril 2019 |
concemned, if different from the holding to 31st March | to J1st to 31st March
company's reporting period 2020 March 2020 | 2020
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on | INR INR INR =1
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the case of forelgn subsidiaries
4 | Share Capital B 5,000,000.00 1,00,000.00 |
5,00,000.00
5 | Reserves & Surplus 88,219.00
(6,01,519.17)
(3.61,771.66)
6 | Total Assets 59,62,829.00 | B,79,460.38 | 42,60,643.22
7 | Total Liabilities |59.62,820.00 | 8,79,460.34 | 42,60,643.22
|
8 | Investments
!
| Enr RNF] SERVICES PVT. LTD.

For RMF1 SERVICES PVI.LTD.

I
+91-11-48207777 Loan®
(::‘7 CimoeieT
info@mfiservices.com P,
sales@miizervices com L

% i et mfiery| ces.com

Plat Ma30, 3rd Flaos,

Majafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhl 110015

CIN : UT41400L2071 SPTC 2863590




—
g Turnoy
er | 97,314.34 12,24,151.00 |
10 | Profit before taxation 1,17,889.00 1361,771.66) | (5,38,315.17)
11 | Provision for taxation 29.670.00 +49.00 |
{Deffored)
12 | Profit after taxation £8,219.00 (361,771.66) | 5,34,364.17
: 13 PFroposed Dividend
13 | % of Shareholding 100% 100% 100t
1.Name of Subsidiaries which are yot to commence operations-Not Applicable

2.Name of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year-Not Applicable

Part "B": Associate and Joint Ventures

Statement Pursuant to 5ec.129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companles and

Joint Ventures
Name of or loint Ventures Fingpay Not Nat Applicable
Frivate Applicable
Limited |
1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date B = = J
2 Pate on which the Associate or Joint = = .
Venture was associated or acquired
3 Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by | - = F; |
the Company on the Year End
i Mo. - - -

Amount of Investment in Assoclates or Joint | - S -
Ventures ||

Extent of Holding [ in percentage) 2 5 . }

4 Description of how there [s significant - - &
influence

not Consolidated

& | Reason why the Associate/loint Venture is - & . ]

For RNFI SERVICES PVI. LTD.

(ocN—

Direeto:




B Met worth attributable to Shareholding as
per latest Audited Balance Sheet

7 Profit or Lass n'f'the Year

-

(i} | Considered in Consolidation

(ii) | Not Considered in Consolidation

Limited

1,Name of Assoclates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations — Fingpay Private

Applicable

2.Name of Associates or Joint ventures which have been liguidated or sold during the year-Not

By the orders of the Board
For RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

For RNFI SERVICES PVT. LD

p’_a‘“ g geil—
Ranveer Kﬂl’iﬁiﬂ

o

For RNFI SER

Director Director

DIN: 07280203 DIN: 07290315

Address: Ward No.-37, Address: I-154, 15t Floor,
Jaipur Road, Rajouri Garden,

Swami KeDhani, Delhi-1 10027

Sikar, Rajasthan-332001

Date: 28.12.2020
FPlace: Delhi

JICES PVT LTD.

Nitesh Kumar Sharma




AGRAWAL CHETAN & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To
The Members of RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, '
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies act, 2013 in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its Profit for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone

E-mail: info@accadvisors.in | Web : www.accadvisors.
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ﬁnanqial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal financial controls system.

RN R Bd ST e B a3
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. The provisions of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;




d)

g)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards

;%icziﬁed under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs. 50
Crore and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less less than Rs.25 Crore the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with
respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

cc())mpany and the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13,
2017; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 1} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

» The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

» The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

» There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Registration No.: 032300N)

Yok -

Chetan Kumar Agrawal

Proprietor

Mem. No. 519236

Place: Delhi

Date : 28.12.2020
UDIN: 2151 9236 AAAAA T4 3719
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of
the company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we
report that:

(i) (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are being physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of fixed
assets), Accordingly, this clause is not applicable.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by
the management at reasonable interval.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management
were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature
of its business.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) According to the information provided and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the books of account, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership
(LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) and
(iii) (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

(v) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, The Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning
of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vi) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to maintain accounts and records as prescribed by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus this clause is
not applicable to the company.

(vii) (a) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, the
company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including




Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth
Tax, Service Tax, GST, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information provided and explanations given to us there were no outstanding
statutory dues as on 31% day of March, 2020 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, there is no

(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and
service tax, sales tax, customs duty and excise duty, value added tax or cess
which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or borrowings taken
from any financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during
the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). However term loans were applied for the purposes for which those
are raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided
for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to
the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the company.




(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Chetan Kumar Agrawal
Proprietor
Mem. No. 519236

Place: Delhi
Date : 28.12.2020

UDIN: 21519236 ARAAA T4379
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RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi - 110015

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

As at As at
Particulars Note No 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)
1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
- Shareholder's Funds
Share Capital ‘ 1 1,000,000 1,000,000
_ Reserves and Surplus 2 5,015,683 1,594,894
Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 62,279 60,017
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 3 14,836,627 10,482,990
Trade Payables 4 305,403,918 161,533,494
Other Current Liabilities 5 88,604,606 43,299,607
Short-Term Provisions 6 859,289 281,127
TOTAL 415,782,402 218,252,129
II ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets 7
(i) Tangible assets 4,151,560 2,867,667
(i) Intangible assets 28,532 -
| Non-Current Investments 8 6,479,139 340,000
| Other Non-Current Assets 9 2,658,900 856,000
|
} Current Assets
| Inventories 10 2,759,306 2,688,553
} Trade Receivables 11 21,747,664 29,352,192
Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 328,195,099 167,830,894
I Short Term Loans and Advances 13 27,353,123 14,316,823
Other Current Assets 14 22,409,079 =
TOTAL 415,782,402 218,252,129
Significant Accounting Policies & Other Explanatory Notes 21

to Financial Statements

In terms of our Audit Report of even date attached

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.: 032300N

N

Chetan Kumar Agrawal
Proprietor
Membership No. 519236

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28th December 2020

For RNFI SERVICES PVT. LT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

e "

Ranveer Khyw% cto
Director

DIN: 07290203

itesh
irector .
DIN: 07290315

bRNFi SERVICES PVT. LTD.

ar Sharma Director

TS

T

eI




RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi - 110015
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

P

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended 31

Particulars
NoteNo- 31 Mar 2020 Mar 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)

| Revenue From Operations 939,214,233 374,783,653
I Other Income 15 848,613 926,696 :
Il Total Revenue (I +11) 940,062,846 375,710,349
X
IV Expenses :
Direct Cost of Operation 16 812,106,267 324,482,998
Increase/Decrease in Stock 17 (70,753) (1,853,475)

Employee Benefit Expenses 18 90,026,259 40,278,483

Finance Cost 19 708,634 604,523

Depreciation 7 884,246 392,418

Administrative & Other Expenses 20 32,125,493 10,832,648

Total Expenses 935,780,146 374,737,595

V  Profit Before Tax (111 - 1V) 4,282,700 972,754
VI  Tax Expense
Current Tax 859,289 281,127 g
Earlier Year Tax 360 51,045 5
Deferred tax 2,262 42,811
VII Profit for the Period (V - VI) 3,420,789 597,771 k
VIII Earning Per Equity Share ?

Basic (in Rs.) 34.21 5.98

34.21 5.98

Diluted  (inRs.)

Significant Accounting Policies & Other Explanatory Notes 21
to Financial Statements

b=

In terms of our Audit Report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.
RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Chartered Accountants

Registration No.: 032300N
For RNFi SERVICES PVT. LTDC.

Ranveer Khyaliya Nitesif Kumar Sharma Directes
Director Pirector Director i

DIN: 07290203 DIN: 07290315

Chetan Kumar Agrawal
Proprietor
Membership No. 519236

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28th December 2020




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 (Rs.)
. As at As at

- 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Authorised .

1,00,000 Nos. (Previous Year - 1,00,000 Nos.) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up

1,00,000 Nos. (Previous Year - 1,00,000 Nos.) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total 1,000,000 1,000,000
1.1 Reconciliation of Numbers of Shares
As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2019

Particulars

No. of Shares  Share capital

No. of Shares Share capital

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 100,000 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000
Additions during the year _ = - .
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 100,000 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000
1.2 Shareholderes Holding more than 5% Shares
As at 31st Mar 2020 As at 31st Mar 2019
Particulars No. of % of No. of % of
Shares Held  Share Holding Shares Held Share Holding
Ranveer Khyaliya 72,680 72.68 72,680 72.68
Nitesh Kumar Sharma 8,000.00 8.00 8,000 8.00
Kapil Chawla 19,320.00 19.32 19,320 19.32

1.3 RIGHTS ATTACHED TO THE SHARES

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares of Par Value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote
per share. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual

General Meeting and shall be payable in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amount and the remaining balancc is distributed in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the

Equity Shareholders.
NOTE 2
Reserves and Surplus As at A
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Surplus In Statement Of Profit & Loss
Balance Brought Forward 1,594,894 997,123
Add:
Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3,420,789 597,771
Total 5,015,683 1,594,894




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3
. . As at As at
Short-term borrowings 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Secured
Bank Overdraft 13,962,037 9.186,026
Unsecured
Term Loan 874.590 1,296,964
Total 14,836,627 10,482,990

Bank Overdrafts are secured by Fixed Deposit. The interest rate on the Bank Overdrafl is ranging between 8-10% during the FY 2019-20.
Term Loan is unsecured loan & carraying Rate of Interest @) 15.50%.

NOTE 4
: As at As at
TeadeFayables 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises - -
Portal balance of Agents/Channel Partners 301,338,756 159,282,419
Other Payable 3,257,481 2,251,075
Advance from customers 807,680 -
Total 305,403,918 161,533,494

Duc to micro, small and medium enterprises

The company has initiated the process of identification of supplicrs registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisec Development
Act 2006, by obtaining confirmations from all supplicrs information has been collected only to the extent of information reccived as at
balance sheet date. Based on the information available with the company., there are no suppliers who are registered as micro, small or

medium enterprise under "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006" as at 31st March 2019 and 3 1st March
2020.

Portal balance of Agents/Channel Partners

This amount reprents amount received from the agents against which E-Value has been enabled on RNFI Portal (Business Portal) of the
company as on balance sheet date and to utilize by them for DMT, AEPS, IMPS, Recharges, Tickets Booking and other business
transactions.

NOTE 5
2l g, As at As at
Other Current Liabilities 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Audit Fees Payable 202,500 157,500
Expenses Payable 2,438,865 -
Expenses Payable to Retaled Parties 1,305,445 -
Salary Payable 4,967,371 3,880,596
TDS Payable 3,592,071 2,116,942
GST Payable 19,793,310 17,586,346
PF/ESI Payable 915,063 424,007
Other Payable 55,389,981 19,134,215
Total 88,604,606 43,299,607

Other Payable
This amount includes the transactions initiated at the end of agents outlet but did not get completed and for which refund is pending.
Further this amount includes the amount received from its agents for which value/portal balance has not been claimed by them as on
balance sheet date. The company is in the process of identifying the agents, individuals and custonmrs for these transactions and
determining the appropriate come of action.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6
sie As at As at
hort-T' Provisions
ko 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Provision for Taxation 859,289 281,127
Total 859,289 281,127
NOTE 8
Non-Current Investments FacoValue  No.ofshares .5, :qsa: - 31st :«Z:tzow
Non-Current Investments (Valued at cost)
Investment in Insurance Policies 879,139 340,000
Trade Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries (Un-quoted)
RNFI Money Private Limited 10 500000 5,000,000 -
RNFI CMS Services Private Limited 10 10000 100,000 -
RNFI Fintech Private Limited 10 - 50000 500,000 -
Total 6,479,139 340,000
NOTE 9
. As at As at
Other Non-Current Assets 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Secuirty Deposit -Rent 2,157,900 351,000
Secuirty Deposit -Others 501,000 505,000
Total 2,658,900 856,000
NOTE 10
] As at As at
o 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Stock in Trade (Valued at lower of cost or NRV)
Devices 2,309,306 1,191,506
IRCTC ID 450,000 820,078
SMS - 676,969
Total 2,759,306 2,688,553
NOTE 11
. As at As at
Trade Receivables 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Debts outstanding for more than six months
Unsecured (considered good) 3,511,700 3,221,347
Other Debts
Unsecured (considered good) - 9
Receivable from Related Parties 594,245 1-0’1?0
Other receivables 17,641,719 26,010,655
21,747,664




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12
Cash & Cash Equivalents Asat As at
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Balances with banks:
In current accounts ) 199,941,623 159,726,617
In Deposit Accounts with Maturity up to 12 months 121,746,641 1,770,698
In Deposit Accounts with Maturity of more than12 months - =
In Escrow/Pool Accounts 6,297,665 908,671
Cash in hand 209,170 5,424,908
Total 328,195,099 167,830,894

Balances maintained with the Current/Deposit/Pool Accounts includes the amount deposited by the agents against which E-Value has been

enabled on RNFI Portal (Business Portal) of the company and to utilize by them for DMT, AEPS, IMPS, Recharges, Tickets Booking and

other business transactions. As on Balance Sheet date amount of Rs. 301,338,756/- is due as Portal Balance of agents as shown under
"Notes - Trade Payables".

NOTE 13
Short Term Loans and Advances Asat Asat
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
Unsecured, considered good
TDS Receivable 13,157,171 6,608,129
Advance Tax - 150,000
Advance to Staff - 2,165,677
Other Short Term Advances 8,764,562 5,337,557
Advance to Related Parties 3,370,200 -
Advance to Suppliers 2,061,190 55,460
Total 27,353,123 14,316,823
NOTE 14
As at As at
e 31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
TDS Recovery 1,493,015 -
Prepaid Expenses 1,326,201 -
Unbilled Revenue 18,748,090 -
Expenses Receivable 595,006 -
Receivable from Related Parties 246,767 -
Total 22,409,079 g
NOTE 15
o For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
er Income 31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019
Discount Received 10,547 796,673
Interest Income on Loan 171,263 -
Interest Income on FDR 666,803 130,023
Total 848,613 926,696
NOTE 16
. . For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Direct Cost of Operation 31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019
Commission Expenses 583,712,888 200,837,862
Purchases 180,290,120 113,345,029
Other Operational Expenses 48,103,259 10,300,107
324,482,998

812,106,267




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
i t
Change in Inventory 31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019
Opening Stock 2,688,553 835,078
Less: Closing Stock 2,759,306 2,688,553
Total (70,753) (1,853,475)

NOTE 18
Employee Benefit Expenses

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019

Director Remuneration 3,600,000 2,280,000
Staff Salary & Incentive 81,373,011 35,984,097
Staff Welfare 1,866,873 1,733,194
Administration Charges PF 108,450 11,900
Employer Contribution to PF 2,711,292 142,815
Employer Contribution to ESI 366,633 126,477

Total 90,026,259 40,278,483

NOTE 19

Finance Cost For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019
Interest on Term Loan 232,210 292,827 "
Interest on Overdraft 305,724 225,363 ;
Interest Paid on Unsecured Loan 140,379 -
Loan/OD Processing Charges 30,320 86,332
Total 708,634 604,523

{1 SR & Bl o (f st/ aa

NOTE 20

Administrative & Other Expenses For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31 Mar 2020 31 Mar 2019

Audit Fees 265,000 175,000
Computers Maintenance & AMC Charges 527,603 808,410
Rental Expenses 6,247,429 884,333
Membership & Subscription 50,000 -

Office Maintenance 1,807,771 1,596,766
Advertisement & Business Promotion 23,000 340,779
Website, Server and Domian Expenses 2,371,899 182,221
Brokerage Paid 21,000 -

Legal & Professional Fees 3,046,384 2,140,856
Conveyance & Travelling Exp 10,890,922 2,251,942
Postage & Courier 919,044 147,879
Electricity Expenses 970,226 583,484
Insurance Expenses 25,077 -

Interest & Late Fees on TDS, GST 1,841,129 177,959
Telephone and Internet Expenses 715,252 500,776
Repair & Maintenance Expenses 191,129 -

Printing and Stationery 810,711 430,291
ROC Filling Fees 24,700 9,410
Short & Excess 50,488 -

Misc. Expenses 181,980 396,483
Recruitment Expenses 122,000 57,017
Festival Expenses - 149,041
Bad Debts 200,000 -

Prior Period Tax 762,749 '

32,125,493




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7
Property Plant and Equipment
Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Particulars As at Ist April Additions  Disposals As at 31st As at st Charged for Disposals As at 31st Mar  As at Ist As at 31st
2019 B Mar 2020  April 2019 the period P 2020 April 2019 Mar 2020
Tangible Assets
Plant & Machinery - - - B - B - - - -
Electrical Fittings - - . & - . N - - -
Furniture & Fixtures 611,978 402,977 - 1,014,955 53,904 85,450 - 139,354 558,073 875,600
Motor Vehicles 883,209 - . 883,209 80,491 104,925 E 185,416 802,718 697,793
Office Equipments 562,775 954,241 - 1,517,016 83,330 189,816 - 273,146 479,446 1,243,871
Computers & Peripherals 1,274,121 804,452 B 2,078,574 246,692 497,587 - 744,279 1,027,430 1,334,295
Total Tangible Assets 3,332,083 2,161,670 - 5,493,754 464,416 877,778 - 1,342,194 2,867,667 4,151,560
Softwares - 35,000 - 35,000 - 6,468 - 6,468 - 28,532
Total Intangible Assets - - 35,000 - 35,000 - 6,468 - 6,468 - 28,532
Current Year 3,332,083 2,196,670 - 5,528,754 464,416 884,246 - 1,348,662 2,867,667 4,180,092
Previous Year 1,012,646 2,319,437 - 3,332,083 71,998 392,418 - 464,416 940,648 2,867,667




RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi- 110015
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

For the Ycar Ended For the Year Ended 31
Particulars 31 Mar 2020 Mar 2019
(Rs.) (Rs.)

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax 4,282,700 972,754
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 884,246 392,418
Preliminary expenses W/off . .
Dividend income ; j
Profit/(Loss) on sale of investments - -
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Asscts - N
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,166,946 1,365,172
Adjustments for (increase)/decreasc in operating assets
Inventories (70,753) (1,853,475)
Trade Receivables 7,604,528 (24,325,183)
Loan and advances (13,317,427) (8,573,996)
Other Current and Non-Current Assets (24,211,979) (682,000)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilitics
Trade Payables 143,870,423 79,684,517
Short Term Provisions - 36,167
Other Current Liabilities 45,305,000 21,206,196
Cash Generated From Operations 164,346,739 66,857,398
Tax Expenses (360) (332,172)
Net cash flow from opcrating activities 164,346,379 66,525,226
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activitics
Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets (2,196,670) (2,319,437)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - -
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments) (6,139,139) 56,700
Profit on sale of investments - -
Dividend received - -
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activitics (8,335,809) (2,262,737)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds/(payments) from long term borrowings - -
Proceeds/(payments) from short term borrowings 4,353,635 4,703,646
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital - -
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities 4,353,635 4,703,646
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 160,364,204 68,966,134
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 167,830.894 98,864,760
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 328,195,099 167,830,894
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year *
* Comprises:
(a) Cash on hand 209,170 5,424,908
(b) Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts 199,941,623 159,726,617
(ii) In deposit accounts 121,746,641 1,770,698
(iii) In escrow/pool accounts 6,297,665 908,671

328,195,099 167,830,894

In terms of our Audit Report of even date attached

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Registration No.; 032300N

. WIT
\ Ranveer Khyaliya
Director

o
FRN: 032300N | ©

Chetan Kumar Agrawal
Proprietor
Membership No. 519236

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28th December 2020

For and on behalf of board of directors of
RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LMI

RNFI SERVICES PVIELTANF

Nitesh Ru
Director

r Sharma

DIN: 0729 e ot o [DIN: 07290315

ES PVT. LTD.




RNFI Services Private Limited
Note 21 forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31/03/2020

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes to Financial Statements

A. Corporate Information
RNFI Services Private Limited is a company registered under the Companies Act, 2013 vide registration
number U74140DL2015PTC286390 on 13" October 2015 having its registered office in Delhi. The
Company is enacting as a Business Correspondent of various Banks and Payment Banks and engaged in
the business of Domestic Money Transfer (DMT), IMPS, AEPS, Mobile Recharges, Railway and Air
Tickets, Cash Collection Services, EMI Collection Services and other incidental business through its
agents (namely Retailers, Distributors, Partners and Super) network across the country.

B. Significant Accounting Policics

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been  prepared in accordance  with the  Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’) to comply with the Accounting  Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention and accrual basis.

(b) Usc of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expense
during the year. Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between
the actual result and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialize.

(c) Current vs. non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
e  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle;
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve mon i3 he reporting period.
44,°°




~ All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has evaluated and considered its operating cycle as 12 months.

Deferred tax assets / liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.
= (d) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Tangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses if any. Costs include the purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The cost
-of an item of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress shall be recognized as an asset if and
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment asset is added to its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress,
including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Costs incurred on assets under installation or construction as at the Balance Sheet date is shown as capital
work-in-progress and the related advances are shown as 'capital advances' under other non-current
assets.

(ii) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally generated intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale;
o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
e how the intangiblg assgt.will generate probable future economic benefits;




e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

"o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
development

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no

internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in the
statements of profit or loss and in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of internally-generated intangible assets are expensed as
incurred.
(e) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful life of the assets, considering the useful life specified under Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Intangible assets are amortized over a period of 5 years on straight line basis.

(f) Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their -

intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready

for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

(g) Taxation

i) Current Tax:

* Provision for the Current Tax is made on the basis of the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the

year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ii) Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax, if any, resulting from “timing differences” between book and taxable profit wherever
material, is account for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on
balance sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets, Subject to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried
forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

(h) Earnings Per Share:

The earning considered in ascertaining the company’s EPS are determined as per Accounting Standard 20
on “Earnings per Share” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The number of shares
used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The
diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as Basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential
dilutive equity shares unless the effect of the potential dilutive equity shares is anti-dilutive.




(i) Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past events; it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has
been reliably estimated. A contingent liability is disclosed where there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources

(j) Inventories

Valuation of inventories is taken at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value,
less any provision for obsolescence.

(k) Revenue Recognition

As the Company is enacting as a Business Correspondent of various Banks and Payment Banks and
engaged in the business of Domestic Money Transfer (DMT), IMPS, AEPS, Mobile Recharges, Railway
and Air Tickets, Cash Collection Services, EMI Collection Services and other incidental business through
its agents/channel partners network, the revenue of the company is commission income for various
transactions, onboarding fee, sale of recharges etc.

Revenue is recognized when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or
collection. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Commission Income: Commission income gencrally determined as a percentage of transaction value
executed by the agents/channel partners of the company. The commission income from various transaction
services (DMT, IMPS, AEPS, EMI Collection, Cash Collection etc.) provided through the Company's
portal is recognized when the transaction is executed and the services are rendered on real time basis and is
included under the head “Revenue from Operations” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Onboarding Fees: Onboarding fees is recognized as and when retailers and distributors are enrolled with
the company and is included under the head “Revenue from Operations” in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. ,

Sale of Recharges and Devices: Revenue from sale of recharges/devices is recognized when control of
the recharge coupon/goods sold, which coincides with the delivery, is transferred to the customer and it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection and is included under the head “Revenue from Operations” in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis and is included under the head “Other
Income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(1) Investment -
Long Term Investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline,
other than temporary, in the value of investments.

Current Investments, wherever applicable are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

(m) Related Party Disclosure




(A) Holding Company
Nil

(B) Subsidiaries

RNFI Money Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
RNFI Fintech Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
"~ RNFI CMS Services Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

(C) Joint Ventures
Fingpay Private Limited

(Contribution of Share Capital is Pending as on Balance Sheet Date)

(D) Fellow Subsidiaries/Associates

Nil

(E) Key Management Personnel

Kapil Chawla Director
Ranveer Khyaliya Director
Nitesh Kumar Sharma Director

The related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year are given below

along with nature of Transactions:

Name of Related Nature of transaction Amount Amount
Parties (in Rs.) Receivable/
Payable as on
31.03.2020
RNFI Money Private Payment of ROC Fees. 90,841/- 90,841/-
Limited (Reimbursement) (Shown under Note
“Other Current
Assets”)
RNFI Money Private Unsecured Loan: Nil
Limited Taken during the year 94,00,000/-
Repaid during the year 94,00,000/-
RNFI Money Private | Interest Expenses on Loan 1,40,379/- Nil
A Limited Taken
RNFI Money Private Investment in Shares
Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) 50,00,000/-
RNFI Fintech Payment of ROC Fees. 1,841/- 1,841/-
Private Limited (Reimbursement) (Shown under Note
“QOther Current
Assets”)
RNFI Fintech Loans and Advances: - 6,50,100/-
Private Limited Given during the year 31,50,100/- (Shown under Note




Refund of Loan during the “Short Term Loan
year 25,00,000/- and Advances”)
RNFI Fintech Interest Income on Loan 74,291/- 66,862/-
Private Limited Given (Shown under Note
“Other Current
Assets”)
RNFI Fintech Investment in Shares
Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) 5,00,000/-
RNFI CMS Services Loans and Advances: - 27,20,100/-
Private Limited Given during the year 4,53,50,100/- (Shown under Note
Refund of Loan during the “Short Term Loan
year 4,26,30,000/- and Advances”)
RNFI CMS Services Interest Income on Loan 96,914/- 87,223/-
Private Limited Given (Shown under Note
“Other Current
Assets”)
RNFI CMS Services | Cash Management Service and Voucher Loading 5,94,245/-
Private Limited Services (Shown under Note
“Trade
Receivables™)
RNFI CMS Services Cash Management and 38,888/- Nil
Private Limited Voucher Loading Charges
RNFI CMS Services AEPS Commission Paid 11,55,263/- 13,05,445/-
Private Limited (including GST)
(Shown under Note
“Other Current
Liabilities™)
RNFI CMS Services Investment in Shares
Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary) 1,00,000/-
Kapil Chawla Director Remuneration 12,00,000/-
Ranveer Khyaliya Director Remuneration 12,00,000/-
Nitesh Kumar Director Remuneration 12,00,000/-
Sharma
Kapil Chawla Purchase of Equity Shares of 5,000/- Nil
M/s RNFI Fintech Private
Limited (500 Shares @ of
Rs. 10 each)
Kapil Chawla Purchase of Equity Shares of 10,000/- Nil
' M/s RNFI Money Private
Limited (1000 Shares @ of
Rs. 10 each)
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(n) Operating Lease

The company has taken various premises on cancellable operating lease and is renewable by mutual
consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss
amounting to Rs. 62,47,429/- (Previous Year — Rs. 8,84,333/-)

(o) Impairment of assets

As asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has
been the estimate of recoverable amount.

(p) Employee Benefits

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contribution as required by the relevant act made
to the Government Provident fund and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Additional Information

(a) Previous year figures have been reworked/regrouped/ reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

(b) In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans & advances will be  realized in the
ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet
and provisions for all known liabilities have been made.

(c) Balance in the accounts of creditors and other liabilities are subject to confirmation.
(d) The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the General Instructions in
respect of Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the Company has complied with the Accounting Standards as
applicable to a Small and Medium Sized Company.

(e) Payment to Auditors:

Statutory Audit Fees Rs. 2,00,000/-
Tax Audit Fees Rs.  25,000/- ;
GST Audit Fees Rs. 40,000/- ’
Others Rs 2,98,000/- ’
(g) Value of imports on C.I.F. Basis NIL
(h) Expenditure in foreign currency NIL
(i) Remittance in foreign currency on account NIL
of Dividend
NIL

(j) Earning in foreign currency

NIL (Previous Year: NIL)

(k) Contingent Liabilities




5
§
5
|
-
.

FARNTERZT R TN BTSRRI ST TRNRREINNVI N BRI T TR BRI P 553

(1) Earning per cquity share (EPS): -

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Net Profit After Tax 34,20,789 5.97.771

Weighted Average number of equity shares

outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,000 1,00,000

Diluted & Basic EPS 34.21 5.98
For Agrawal Chetan & Co. For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants for RNFI Services Private Limited

-

(Registration No.: 032300N) For RNFi SERVICES PVT ™ For RN

| SERVICES PVT. LT:

A\ (\ o
Chetan Kumar Agrawal FRN: 032300N _% Ranveer Khyal{9gector NitesH Kumar Sharma Director
Proprictor DELHI /] * | Director Director
Mem. No. 519236 &/ DIN: 07290203 DIN: 07290315

Place: Delhi
Date: 28.12.2020
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AGRAWAL CHETAN & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To

The Members of RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(}pinion

We have audited the .lummpanving consolidated financial statements of RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company™) and its subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group” which comprise the

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the consolidated
financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated financial statements’ ;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries. as
were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
canformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group
as at March 31, 2020, its Consolidated Profit and its Consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our rcupunmhlhm: under those Standards are further
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the code of ethics issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of
ethies,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
aur opinion on the consolidated financial statements,

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

the Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
nformation comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexure to Board's
Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements. standalone financial statements and our
suditor’s report thereon.,

B-32. West Guru Angad Nagar, Delhi-110092 | Ph.: GI‘I-EEKIIH(}?-I 1
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements. our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accardance with the provisions of the Act
fur safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records. relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Management and Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless respective Board of Directars either intend to liquidate their respective entities
OFto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the each company.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
ageregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
swepticism throughout the audit. We also:




* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s and its subsidiary company's internal financial
controls system.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
I we conelude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report 1o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or. if such disclosures are
inadequate. to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease 1o continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures. and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significam
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current petiod and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,




Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consolidation of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors . we
report to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

d)

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

[n our opinion. proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss and the
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specitied under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the board of directors of the company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in India and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs. 50
Crore and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year
is less less than Rs.25 Crore the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with
respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13,
2017: and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

* The Company and its subsidiaries companies do not have any pending litigations
which would impact its financial position;

*  The Company and its subsidiaries companies did not have any long-term contracts

including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;
and

AV




= There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiaries companies
incorporated in India.

For Agrawal Chetan & Co,
Chartered Accountants
{(FRN No.: 032300N)

[k A

_-".-‘-_.-'_.-

Chetan Kumar Agrawal
Proprietor

Mem. No. 519236

Place: Delhi
Date : 28.12.2020

UDIN: 2!5*19236'&9&#3&-?14;



RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Road Indusirial Area, Delhi- 110015

CONS LANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31. 20
As at
Particulars Note No Jist Mar 2020
(Rs.)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds
Share Capital I L.006,000
Reserves and Surplus 2 4335460
Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 62,634
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 3 15372170
I'rade Pavables 4 306,570,392
Other Current Liabilities 5 B7.481.504
short=Term Provisions (] BER 950
TOTAL 415.911,725
Il ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Praperty, Plant and Equipments 7
(i) Tangible assets 4, 166,795
{11 Intangihle assets 28.532
Groodwill on Consolidation 194,849
Nan-Current Investmeiils | 879,139
Oither Non=-Current Assets 9 2658900
Current Assets
Imventories 1 2,759 306
Trade Receivables 11 21,504,746
Cash & Cash Equivalents 12 337296677
Short Term Loans and Advances i3 24,122312
Othet Current Assets 14 22300469
TOTAL 415911,725
Significant Accounting Palicies & Other Ex planatory 21

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our Audit Report of even date attached

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Regismation No.: 032300N

Chetan Kumar Agrawal

PProprictor
Memhbership No. 519236

Plage; New Delhi
Prate: 28th Decamber 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

RNFI SERVICES I’}FV% MLT

0 ﬂer SERVICES PVT. LID

[irector
DIN: 07290203

J\/
mﬂﬂ-ﬁ Nitesh Kuma

Director
DIN: 07290315

ICESPVT. LID.

Director
Arma



RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Rond Industrial Arvea, Delhi- 110015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 1. 2020
For the Year Ended 31
Particulars Note No. Mar 2020
(Rs.)
1 Revenue Fram Operations Q30,214,233
| Other Income 15 1.358.076
11l Total Revenue (1+ II) H40,572.310
IV Expenses
Direct Cost of Operation 16 B12:417.644
InereaseDecrense in Stock 17 (7L733)
Employee Benetit Expenses 18 91,072,660
Finance Cost 19 580044
Pepreciation 7 B87.892
Administrative & Other Expenses 20 32.179.720
Total Expenses 937,067,808
v Profit Before Tax (111 - 1V) 3,504,502
VI Tax Expense
Current Tax 888,959
Earlier Yeur Tax 360
Deterred tax 231
VI1  Profit for the Period (V - VI) 2,612,872
VIl Earning Per Eguity Share
Basic {in Ra.) 26.13
Diluted {in Rs.) 26.13
Significant Accounting Policies & Other Explanatory Notes 2
to Consolidated Financial Statemenis
In terms of our Audit Report of even date atiached
For Agrawal Chetan & Co, Far and on behal f of the Board of Directors of
Churlered Accountants RNFI SERVICES P IFAEE,LIMITED, =
Registration No.: 032300N e =l 8] or RNFI SERVILES FVILLIL
, Rl i For RNFI SERVICES PV LD
fbbr 5 N
ﬂ{’"ﬁ i Director
Cheran Kumar Agrawal Rnnoii‘i‘-’ﬁéﬁhliyu Nitesh Kfimar Sharma
Proprictor Director Prirector
Mﬂmheﬂihip N, 319236 DIN: 07290203 DIN: 07290315

Plitce: New' Delhi
Drate: 28th Decembaer 20240



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANUIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE (Rs.)
. Asnt
Share € I
s 315t Mar 2020
Amthurised
| 00,000 Nos: Equity Shaces pl Rs 10 cach | 0L
Issued. Subscribed and Paid U'p
| 0 000 Nk, Eguity Share of R 10 cuch I[Ny EXEY
Total 1 RN
1.1 Recancilintion of Numbeis of Shores
A= al 31002020
Particula
ey i No. of Shares Share capital
Shares outstanding s al the beginning of the year LSRR (WETER
Ackditiong durmg the vear - :
Shaires auistanding us a1 the end of the year 1 00000 1,000,000

1.2 Shareholderes Holding more than 5% Shares

As mi 2t Mar 2020

Particulars e, of e of
Shares Held Shiare Nolding
Ramvesr Khyaliya 72,080 7168
Mitesh Komar Sharma R R Koo
Kapil Chawla 15,320.00 jeaa

1.3 RIGHTS ATTACHED TO THE SHARES

The Company has oaly one cluss of Equity Shates of Par Valge of R 10/ per shure. Each holder of Fquity Share (s
entitled to-one vore per share. The dwidend. it any. proposed by the Hoard of Tirecion is subject to the approval of
the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual Gensral Meeting and shall be payable in Indian rupees

In thee event of hiquidation of the Company. the holder of Equity Sharas will he entitled (o feceive ramaining assets of

the Company after distribution of all prefierential ainouat and the remaining

nummber of equiry shires held by the Equity Sharcholders

NOTE 2

balance 15 distributed bn propartion o the

Reserves and Surplis

As ut
Alat Mar 3020

Surplus In Statement Of Profit & Loss

Balance Brought Farward 1 327,139

Add:

Profit as per Stement of Profit and Loss 2512872

Pre/Post Acquistion Profit adjustment on scoount of consolidation 164 49
Total 4,335,460

For RNFI SERVICES PVT. Lo
_F,f_zf\/"
Direc!c

For RNFI SERVICES PVT 1 (0

Diractor



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3

Short-term boarrowlngs St ::.:Imu
Secured
Bunk Overdraf 14698, 186
Unsecured
Term Loan 74 3590

Tutal 1557776

Bank Overdrafts are sceured by, Fixed Deposit. The iterest rate on the Bank Overdrafl is rinzing Berwecn 8- 00
during the FY 301930 Teem Loan is ansecured loan & carmying Rowe of Inensst @) 15, 500,

NOTE 4
, Asat
Trade Pavahles
y 305t Mar 2020
Diues o wicra, small and medium enterprises .
Porwl batance of AgentsChannel Partners 301,338 755
Other Trade Pevable 4,423,050
Advance from customers HUT L8
Tulal 306,570,392

Bue ro micro, small and medinm enterprises

The company has iniated the process of identificaion of supplices registered under Micra, Small and Medii
Enterprise Development Act 2006, by obtaining confirmanons from all suppliers informuition has baen colleetsd only
to the extent of infarmation received as at bakince shect date Baged on the information availthle with the compary,
there are no suppliers whe are registered as micro, small or medium enterprise under “The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Theve loprment Act 20067 us gt 3181 March 2020

Thig amouit reprents amount recerved from the agents agamest whoch E-Value has been ¢oghled on RNFT Poral
(Businesy Porali of the company &4 on balance sheet date and fo utilize by them for DMT. AEPS, IMDS, Rachargss,
Tickets Baoking and other business transactione

NOTES
Other Current Linbilitics

Asan
31wt Mar 2020

At Feed Payable 234,560
Eipensey Pavahle 3330638
Salary Puynhble 4,907,371
T3S Pavable 3,668 374
GS'T Payable 19T 68T
PFAST Payablo 915,063
Other Payable 55 345 481

Tutal BT 481,504

Dther Pavahle

This ameunt includes the ansnctions initiated ot the end Gf agents outlet but did not gel com pleted andd for which
refund 18 pending. Further this amount meludes the amoust received from iis agents Tor which value/porial bakinee
hiis mot been claimed by them as on balance sheet date The company 15 i the process of identifying the ajscors,
individuals and customers for thes: tamsactions and determining the appropriae come of action

For RNF SERVICES pyvy

For RNF1 SERVICES FVIL. L L. VICES PVT. LTD

irecion

e

_—




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE &
Shart-Term Pravisions il ;I::Im:n
Prowision for Taxation LLERCRES
RHH G2
NOTE &
Non=Current lnvestments Face Vilue  No. of shares st :I'::Ill}!ﬂ'
Non-Current Investmon s (Valued ot cost)
Investment m [nsurance Polickes ErL R
379,139
NOTE %
Asat

Other Nom-Current Assets

s Ay 2020

Unseeured, considered good
Secuirty Deposit -Rem 2152590
Security Deposit <Others BRG]
2654, 9
NOTE 1
Asal
Inventories

Fwt Mur 2030

Stuck in Trade (Valued at lower of cost or NRY)

Devices 2309306
IRCTC T 450,000
2,759,306
NOTE 11
Asat
Trode Heceivables

30st Mar 2020

DPebis sutstanding for more than siv months

Insecured (considersd goid) 3511,
Other Debis
Secured, considered goad =
Unsecured (constdered good)
Onher recevables 17,083, 046
21,504,746
MOTE 11
As ot

Cash & Cash Equivalents

st Mar 2020

Balances with banks

I curvent accoutts 0143401
T Prepnsit Ascounts with Motarity up to |2 months 128 744 641
I Dheposit Accounts with Maturiny of more than 12 manths -
I Facoi®onl Accmmts 6,297 665
Cash in hand Al U7
137.296,677
E:J: E‘-!FIF—: FVviLip




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANUCIAL STATEMENTS

Balances maintmned with the Current DipositPoal Aceounts neludes the amouiit depasiied by the agents acmnst
which E-Value his been enabled on RNFI Portal {Rusiness Portal) of the company amd W uilize by them for DMT

AEPS, IMPS. Rechorges, Tickets Booking asd olher business trosactions As on Balance Sheer date amount of Rs
301.238.736/- i3 due as Porml Ralanee of apents as shown under "Notes = Trade Pavables™

NOTE 13

Asat

Short Term Loans and Advances
Alst Mar 2020

Unsecured, conaldered good

TOS Recervible 13,247 5000
Advance o Staff 49,000
Other Short Term Advances 8,764 562
Advaice 1 Suppliers 261,140
Tutal 24122312

NOTE 14

thther Current Assels Asat
st Mar 2030

Premifinary Expenses to Written O 72673
TS Recovery 1,493,013
Prepaid Expenses 1326 201
Linbilled Revenue LK, 748
Interesa Accrued on FDR Ve
Toral 22,300,469

NOTE 13
Diher c For the Vear Ended

A1 Mar 2020

Thineouint Recerved 620,532
Imteiest fncome o Loan 5K
Interest Tneome on FTR 737244
Short/Excess 243
Tulul 1. 358,078

NOTE 16

Direct Cost of Operstion For the Year Ended

31 Mar 2020
Commission Expeises SH3,674,266
Pt hanes 18U 26, 1200
Other Operationg| Expenses 48 453259
Total 812,417,644
NOTE 17
y Fop the Yeur Ended
Change in Inventory
E ¥ 31 M 2020
Opemng Stock 1,688,553
Less Clasinge Stack 2,738,300
Toial (70,753
B e mtnm i h N
For RNFI SERVICES PV LID.
o ot
. ; Directo! '
Direce




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18

Employee Benefit Expenses

Fuor the Yesr Ended

31 Mar 2020
[irector Remunerntion 3,600,060
Stafi Salary & [pcentive BRI 419412
St Wellare 1. R66 &73
Administration Charges PF 108430
Ermployis Contribigtion (o PF 2y | Bt
Employer Contribution o ESI 3bh,633
Tutal 91,072,660

NOTE 19

= For the Year Ended

Finaneé Cast 31 Mar 2020
Innerest on Term Loan 233310
Interest on Overdraft eI R R
LoanfOD Provessing Charges 30320
Tatal S8, G644

NOTE 20

For the Yeur Eadid

Administrative & Other Ex % 31 Mar 2020
Aundi Fees 305,000
Computers Maintenance & AMC Chorges 527,601
Henlal Expenisés 5,324.429
Membership & Subscription S0.000
e Mamienance 1L BT, 770
Advertisement & Busmess Promotisn 23 000y
Website, Server and Dioniian Expinses 2374130
Airnkiesmge Pl 21.000
Legal & Professgnal Fees 1.924 9802
Convevanoe & Travelling Exp 10,890,522
Postmje & Courier 16 044
Electnicnty Exprenses 90,2046
Insumnee Expenses 25077
Interest d& Late Fees on TNS, GST [ RAG 053
Telephome and Internet Expenses TTTMAT
Repair £ Maintenance Expenties 181,128
Printing and Ststionery B, 711
ROC Filling Fees 44,704
Short & Excess S0 488
Misc Expenses LEL 980
Recrmitment Expenses 122 {13
Bail Drebis 2001 A10ip
Prior Period Toy 762,749
Bank Chuarges 0,825
Touwl 32,170,720

" s k= 5 - FDr = | {
=R
(\2""‘
Direclor
|.-..'\J_"_"":_ i
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RNFI SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
3rd Floor, Plot No.-30, Nazafgarh Road Industrial Area, Delhi- 110015
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31st March 2020

For the Year Ended 31
Particulars Mar 2020
(Rs.)
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax 3.504,502
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 887,892

Preliminary expenses Wioft -
Dividend income -
Profit/(Loss) on sale of investments -
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets -

Operating profit before working capital changes 4,392,394

Changes in working capital.
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets

Inventories (70.753)
Trade Receivables 7.847. 446
Loan and advances (10,051.616)
Other Current and Non-Current Assels (24.103.369)

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade Payables 145,036,898
Short Term Provisions =

Other Current Liabilities 44,054,168
Cash Generated From Operations 167,105,168
Tax Expenses (360)
Net cash flow from operating activities 167,104,808

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets (2,196.670)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets =
{Increase)/Decrease in Investments) (639,139)
Profit on sale of investments -
Dividend received o =
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (2,835.809)
For RNFI SERVICES PVT. L0 For RNF] SER i




C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds/(payments) from long term borrowings

5.089.784

Proceeds/(payments) from short term borrowings

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital -

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities 5,089,784

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 169,358,782

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 167,937,894

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 337,296,677

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year *

* Comprises:

(2) Cash on hand 508,970

(b) Balances with banks

(1) In current accounts 201,743,401

(i) In deposit accounts 128.746.641

(iit) In escrow/pool accounts 6.297.665
337,296,677

In terms of onr Audit Report of even date attached

For Agrawal Chetan & Co.

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of board of directors of

Registration No.: 032300NEqr RIF SERVICERNFEE SERVICES I&EIVﬂEL[@[ﬁ]&F% D
B I ..-i;-t-;z',j:_t g

= %
%’a

Chetan Kumar Agraw
Proprietor
Membership No. 519236

irector

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28th December 2020

Director
anveer Khyaliya

DIN: 07290203

!

g Direclor
NifSK Kumar Sharma
Direttor
DIN: 07290315



RNFI Services Private Limited

Note 21 forming part of the Balance Sheet as on 31/03/2020)

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

AL

Corporate Information

RNFI Services Private Limited is a company registered under the Companies Act,
2013 vide registration number U74140D1.2015PTC286390 on 13" October 2013
having its registered office in Delhi. The Company is cnacting as a Business
Correspondent of various Banks and Payment Banks and engaged in the business of
Domestic Money Transfer (DMT), IMPS, AEPS, Mobile Recharges, Railway and Air
Tickets, Cash Collection Services, EMI Collection Services and other incidental
business through its agents (namely Retailers. Distributors, Partners and Super)
network across the country.

RNFI Services Private Limited together with its subsidiaries is hereinafier referred 1o
#s “the Group™.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP') to comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act. 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical ¢ost convention and accrual basis.

(b) Basis of consolidation

RNFI Services Private Limited consolidates entities which it owns or controls.
The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control exists when the parent has power over the
entity. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is
demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities,
those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidared from
the date control commences until the date control ceases.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line
basis and intra-group balances and transactions including unrealized gain / loss from
such transactions are eliminated upon consolidation in accordance with Accounting
Standard (AS) 21 - “Consolidated Financial Statements™, These financial statements
are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Non-
controlling interests which represent part of the net profit or loss and net assets of
subsidiaries that are not. directly or indirectly. owned or controlled by the Company.
are excluded.

FUI' I"','.u.'j .




The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at
the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

The list of subsidiary companies which are included in the consolidation and the
Group's holdings therein are as under:

8. No. Name of the Company Ownership (%)
| RNFI Fintech Private Limited 100
2 RNFI CMS Services Private Limited 100
3 RNFI Money Private Limited 100

During the year, RNFI Services Private Limited has acquired 100% shares of RNFI
CMS Services Private Limited and incorporated two subsidiaries “RNFI Money
Private Limited” and “RNF] Fintech Private Limited™ and further acquired up to
100% shares of these two companies due to which “RNFI CMS Services Private
Limited™, “RNFI Money Private Limited” and “RNFI Fintech Private Limited” has
become wholly owned subsidiary company of RNFI Services Private Limited.

Goodwill amounting to INR 194,849/~ is recorded as a result of conselidation of
subsidiaries as per Accounting Standard -21 “Consaolidated Financial Statements™.

Additional Disclosure

| Name of the Entity Net Assets Share in Profit or (Loss)
Y of Amounl % of Amount (Rs.)
consolidated (Rs.) consolidated
net assets prafit or (loss)
RNFI Services 36.01 60.15.683 130.92 34.20.789
Private Limited
RNFI CMS (4.67) (5.01.519) (20.45) (5.34.364)
Services Privaie
Limited |
RINFI Flntech 1.29 1.38.228 (13.85) (3.61.772)
Private Limited
RNFI Muoney 47.37 50.88,219 3.38 88219
Private Limited
| 100 1.07,40.611 100 26,12,872
Adjustment arising out of (54.05.151) - -
cansolidation ,
Total | | 53.35.460 26,12.872

For RNFI SERV

Direclc

For RNFI SERVICES pvT L2
Ul <ERVICES VL Lo




(c) Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the management o make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expense during the year.
Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference
between the actual result and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the
results are known / materialize.

(¢) Current vs, non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
e  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading:
Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period: or
e (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating eyele:
o Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has evaluated and
considered its operating cycle as 12 months.

Deferred tax assets / liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Tangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment. capital work in progress are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses it any. Costs include the
purchase price. borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly
atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Any trade discounts and rebates arc deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress shall be
recognised as_an _qls;,F.-t ||[' and only if it is probable that future economic benefits
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associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property. plant and cquipment asset is
added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on
existing property. plant and equipment, capital work in progress, including day-to-day
repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, arc charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Costs incurred on assets under installation or construction as at the Balance Sheet date
is shown as capital work-in-progress and the related advances are shown as
'capital advances' under other non-current assets.

(ii) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible asscts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost
Following initial recognition, intangible assels are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. Amortisation is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated uscful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally generated intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred. An internally-gencrated intangible asset arising from development
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if. and only if, all
of the following have been demonstrated:
e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;
e the intention 1o complete the intangible asset and use or sell it:
the ability to use or sell the intangible asset:
how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits:
the availability of adequate technical, financial and ather resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the intangible asset: and
e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during development

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of
the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above, Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in the statements of profit or loss
and in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent cxpenditures on the maintenance of internally-generated intangible assets

are expensed as incurred. TR s
are expensed ani For RNFI SERVICES PVT. LTD
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(e) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property. Plant and Equipment is provided using the straight line
method over the estimated useful life of the assets. considering the useful life specified
under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Intangible assets are amortized over a period of 3 vears on straight line basis.

() Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(g) Taxation

i) Current Tax:
Provision for the Current Tax is made on the basis of the amount of tax payable on
taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ii) Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax, if any, resulting from “timing differences™ between book and taxable
profit wherever material. is account for using the tax rates and laws that have heen
enacted or substantially enacted as on balance sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets,
Subject to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried forward only to the
extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized,

(h) Earnings Per Share:

The carning considered in ascertaining the company’s EPS are determined as per
Accounting Standard 20 on “Earnings per Share™ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accouniants of India. The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The diluted EPS is
calculated on the same basis as Basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential
dilutive equity shares unless the effect of the potential dilutive equity shares is anti-
dilutive.

(i) Pravisions and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required 1o
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. A contingent hability
is disclosed where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may. but
probably will not, require an outtlow of resources

(j) Inventories

Valuation of inventories is taken at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value,
ess any provision for obsolescence.



(k) Revenue Recognition

As the Company is enacting as a Business Correspondent of various Banks and
Payment Banks and engaged in the business of Domestic Money Transfer (DMT),
IMPS, AEPS, Mobile Recharges, Railway and Air Tickets, Cash Collection Services,
EMI Collection Services and other incidental business through its agents/channel
partners network, the revenue of the company is commission income for various
transactions, onboarding fee, sale of recharges etc.

Revenue is recognised when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its
realization or collection. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognised:

Commission Income: Commission income generally determined as a percentage of
transaction value executed by the agentsichannel partners of the company. The
commission income from wvarious transaction services (DM'T, IMPS, AEPS, EMI
Collection, Cash Collection ete.) provided through the Company's portal is recognized
when the transaction is executed and the services are rendered on real time basis and is
included under the head “Revenue from Operations™ in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Onboarding Fees: Onboarding fees is recognized as and when retailers and
distributors are enrolled with the company and is included under the head
“Revenue from Operations”™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Sale of Recharges and Devices: Revenue from sale of recharges/devices is
recognized when contral of the recharge coupon/goods sold, which coincides with the
delivery, is transferred to the customer and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection and is included under the head “Revenue from Operations™ in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis and is included
under the head “Other Income™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(I} Invesiment
Long Term Investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution is made 1o
recognize a decline, other than temporary. in the value of investments.

Current Investments, wherever applicable are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

(m) Related Party Disclosure
Names of the related parties and related party relationship

(A)Holding Company . A
Nil For RNF| SERVICES By ¢ RNFI SERVICES BT, LI
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(B) Subsidiaries

RNFI Money Private Limi

ted (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

RNEI Fintech Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
RNFI CMS Services Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)

(C) Fellow Subsidiaries/Associates

Nil

(D) Key Management Personnel

Kapil Chawla Director
Ranveer Khyaliya Director
| Nitesh Kumar Sharma Director |

The related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year are
given below along with nature of Transactions:

Name of Related | Nature of transaction Amount | Amount
Parties (in Rs.) Receivable/
Payable as on
| 31.03.2020
RNFI Money | Payment of ROC Fees. 90.841/- 90.841/-
Private Limited (Reimbursement) (Shown under
Note “Other
Current Assets”)
RNFI Money | Unsecured Loan: Nil
Private Limited Taken during the year 94.00,000/-
Repaid during the year 94,00,000/-
RNFI Money | Interest Expenses on Loan | 1.40,379/- Nil
Private Limited Taken
RNFI Money | Investment in Shares
Private Limited (Wholly Owned 50.00.000/-
Subsidiary)
RNFI Fintech | Payment of ROC Fees. |.841/- | 1,841/-
Private Limited (Reimbursement) (Shown under
Note "Other
Current Assets’)
RNFI1 Fintech | Loans and Advances:-
Private Limited Given during the year 31.50.100/-
Refund of Loan during 6.50,100/-
the vear 25,00,000/- (Shown under
Note ** Short
Term Loan and
Advances”)
RNFI Fintech | Interest Income on Loan 74,291/- 66,862/-
Private Limited Given (Shown under
Note “Other
Current Assets”)
CRE
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RNFI Fintech | Professional Fees 97.314/- | Nil
Private Limited
RNFI Fintech | Investment in Shares
Private Limited (Wholly Owned 3.00.000/-
Subsidiary)
RNFI CMS | Loans and Advances:-
Services  Private | Given during the year 4.53,50,100/-
Limited Refund of Loan during 27.20.100/-
the year 4,26,30,000/- {Shown under
Nate * Short
Term Loan and
Advances”)
RNFI CMS | Interest Income on Loan 096,914/~ 87,223/-
Services  Private | Given (Shown under
Limited Note “Other
Current Assets’)
|
RNFI CMS | Cash Management Service and Voucher | 5,94.245/-
Services  Private | Loading Services (Shown under
Limited Note “Trade
Receivables™)
RNFI CMS | Cash Management Service | 38,888/~ Nil
Services  Private | and Voucher Loading
Limited Services
RNF1 CMS | Professional Fees 30,000/- Nil
Services  Private
Limited
RNFI CMS | AEPS Commission 11,55,263/- 13,05,445/-
Services  Private (including GST)
Limited (Shown under
Note “Other
Current
Liabilities™)
RNFI CMS | Investment in Shares
Services  Private | (Wholly Owned 1.00.000/-
Limited Subsidiary)
Kapil Chawla Director Remuneration 12,00,000/-
Ranveer Khvaliva | Director Remuneration 12,00,000/-
Nitesh Kumar | Director Remuneration 12,00,000/-
Sharma
Kapil Chawla Purchase of Equity Shares | 5.000/- Nil
of M/s RNFI Fintech
Private  Limited (500
Shares @ of Rs. 10 each)
Kapil Chawla Purchase of Equity Shares | 10,000/- Nil
of M/s RNFI Money
Private  Limited (1000
Shares (@ of Rs. 10 each)

For BME] CEpt e




(n) Operating Lease

The group has taken various premises on cancellable operating lease and is renewable
by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease payments recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss amounting to Rs. 63,28.429/-.

(O) Tmpairment of assets

As asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assel exceeds its recoverable
value. An impairment luss, if any, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized
in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been the estimate of recoverable
amount.

(p) Employee Benefits

Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contribution as required by
the relevant act made to the Government Provident fund and are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Additional Information

(a) Previous year figures have been reworked/regrouped/ reclassified/rearranged
wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification/disclosure.

{b) In the opinion of the board of directors, current assets. loans & advances will be
realized in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which
they are stated in the balance sheet and provisions for all known liabilities have
been made.

(¢) Balance in the accounts of creditors and other liabilities are subject to
confirmation,

(d) Trade Payables includes the amount received from the distributors and retailers
against which E-Value has been enabled on RNFI Portal (Business Portal) of the
company and to utilize by them for DMT, AEPS. IMPS, Recharges and other
business verticals.

Further it includes also the amount received from different distributors and retailers
for which E-Value has not been claimed by them and as such E-value has not been
enabled for it.

Further IMPS and DMT transactions which has not been successfully processed
and for which refund is not claimed till 31 march, 2019 is showing as Trade
Payables.

() The Company is a Small and Medium Sized Company (SMC) as defined in the
General Instructions in respect of Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Accordingly,
the Company has complied with the Acecounting Stan applicable to a Small
and Madium. $iqd Gompany. PR SRR VICES PVT. L1D.




(f) Pavment to Auditors:

Statutory Audit Fees Rs. 2.40,000
Tax Audit Fees Rs. 25,000/-
GST Audit Fees Rs.  40,000/-
Others Rs 3.33,000/-
(g) Value of imports on C.1F, Basis NIL
(h) Expenditure in foreign currency NIL
(i) Remittance in foreign currency on NIL
account of Dividend
(1) Eaming in foreign currency NIL
(k) Contingent Liabilities NIL (Previous Year: NIL)

(1) Earning per equity share (EPS) i~

Particulars 2019-20
Net Profit After Tax 26,12.872
Weighted Average number of equity
shares outstanding at the end of the year 1.00.000
Diluted & Basic EPS 26.13
For Agrawal Chetan & Co. For and on behalf of board of directors of
Chartered Accountants For RNF1 Scn_ricg_:ls_]‘_rimltre Limifed 0
(Registration No.: 032300N) aie| SERVICES PV, 1 RINFTSEIV R F it
¥ C \ - Director
. . : El{eclpr |
Chetan Kumar Agrawal o\ * |Ranveer Khyalya Nitesh Kumar Sharma
Proprietor ' Director Director
Mem. No. 519236 DIN: 07290203 DIN: 07290315

Place: Delhi
Date : 28.12.2020
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